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Early Medieval Stone Buildings in Southwark



Early Medieval Stone Buildings in Southwark G r a h a m D a i v s o n

Twelfth century stone buildings in England are rare and where they occur are often
surrounded by myths, frequently associating them, usually erroneously, with Jews. It
is therefore remarkable that in one small area of Southwark, no less than three 12th

century stone buildings have been discovered but, as usual, the information given
about them is often confused and inaccurate.

Two were found in the 19th century on the south side of Tooley Street and now lie
under Duke Street Hill or London Bridge Station. Even when they were found there
was confusion, with one Surrey historian writing to his Southwark contact as to
whether there were one or two. A local historian, George Corner, wrote an article in
Archaeologia in 1860 to try to sort them out, which he only partly achieved. He
assigned the eastern one to Lewes Priory and the western one to the Earls de
Warenne, though earlier writers had assigned the latter to Lewes. The other stone
building, to the north of Tooley Street, was found in excavations at Toppings Wharf in
1970-2 (Sheldon 1974, 24).
Corner was right in thinking that the eastern building had belonged to Lewes Priory,
but only after 1277, when it was granted to Lewes by John de Warenne, to confuse
matters somewhat (BL Cotton Vesp FXV f194). He had only acquired it shortly before,
between 1255 and 1270 (PRO E40/4074), and the earliest known owner was
Thomas, son of William le Vintner, from sometime before 1249 (St Thomas Hospital
Cartulary no 242). It then owed 8d rent to the Warennes, but this was socage, so
does not imply that they previously owned it. In 1249 the deed speciÞcally refers to
the stone buildings (ibid).
The western stone building south of Tooley Street has usually been seen as the
house of the Warennes, Earls of Surrey, even in recent histories, and this was the
case Corner was trying to make. In fact there is no evidence whatsoever that the
Warennes ever owned it. The earliest known owner was a man called Ralph
Carbonel sometime before 1248 (PRO CP25/1 226/14 381) and the sequence of
owners, apart from one or two minor gaps, can be followed until its purchase by St
Olave's Church in 1520. If the Warennes had a house in Southwark, which seems

very likely, it must have lain elsewhere.
The sequence for the building north of Tooley Street at Toppings Wharf, starts later
and is less clear cut. It is Þrst deÞnitely mentioned in 1325 when it was held for life by
Lora de Peyforer by grant of John de Northwode, elder, who died in 1319 (PRO
CI 34/93/18^ John had probably acquired it on his marriage to Joanne de
Badlesmere in 1281/2 (College of Arms Glover Ms 2 f124d) or 1275 {Archaeologia
Cantiana Vol 2 p9 et seq). The evidence suggests that Joanne acquired the property
from her father Guncelin de Badlesmere, probably at her marriage. There is no direct
evidence before this but it may have come down in the Badlesmeres, a leading
Kentish family, who can be traced back to 1174x84 (Archaeologia Cantiana Vol 6
p297). The Badlesmere connection did continue for a few years after Joanne's death
because Bartholomew de Badlesmere, her brother, obtained custody of Roger de
Northwode, his nephew, though it is not clear whether he still had it when Lora
Peyforer died and this property reverted to the Northwodes (Roger came of age in
1327).
There is, however, a difference between this latter building and those south of Tooley
Street. It is probably a rear hall with a shop and/or a solar in the relatively narrow
space between its southern wall and Tooley Street. The buildings to the south are in
much larger properties, and in a similar way to the later great houses in Southwark,
are situated some way back from the road from which they were probably screened
by a row of shops. The eastern building certainly had shops in front of it (PRO
E40/4021). Of course, on the north side of the road there was insufÞcient room for
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